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Gender-Based Violence Prevention and Intervention Grants Program 
 

Response to Questions asked at the Bidders Conference and RFP e-Questions Submitted  
by 4 pm Thursday, December 19, 2019 

 
 
1. We anticipate increasing a current subcontract amount to better reflect  the full expense of that 
subcontract. What else will we need to provide to include this subcontract in the 2020-2021 proposal?  
 
In the RFP proposal, you would detail the actual cost, or the amount you are requesting for the 
subcontractor, in the proposed line-item budget and budget narrative.  
 
2. Is client activity food an allowable expense?  
 
Yes, as long as food costs are directly related to the program.   
 
3. As we understood from the Bidders Conference, we shouldn’t include the Marriage License Fee (MLF) 
allocation on the Emergency Shelter Program budget. Is that correct?  
 
Correct. Per state law, Marriage License Fee funding can only be allocated to 24-hour domestic violence 
shelter programs and is not included in the total funding for this RFP. 
 
4. Can we use our extensive history as a hub for women's education, prevention, advocacy and 
intervention programs in order to meet the 5 year eligibility requirement for this RFP?  
 
As outlined in the Minimum Eligibility Criteria on page 9 of the RFP Application Packet, it is up to the 
applicant to demonstrate a minimum of five (5) years’ experience providing gender-based violence 
prevention and intervention services in the area of domestic violence, sexual assault, sexual exploitation 
and /or human trafficking.  
 
5. We will not have our 18-19 Audit completed until the end of February 2020. Can we submit our 17-18 
Financial Review with our RFP application and then send in our 18-19 Audit at the end of February 2020? 

Please submit the most recent financial audit you have available. We are unable to accept any additional 
documents after the application due date of Friday, January 24, 2020.  

6. For the Board roster, if the organization set up an e-mail for them under our organization, could we 
put down their organization e-mail or does it have to be their personal or work e-mail address? 
 
As long as the organization email goes to the board members, and is not first screened by staff at the 
organization, you can use the organization email address for board members. We need a method to 
directly contact board members if necessary. 
 

http://www.sfgov.org/dosw
http://www.sfgov.org/dosw
mailto:dosw@sfgov.org
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7. On the Application Grant Plan document, in the narrative, section B. Services, #2, it says, "How many 
clients has the agency served and for which programs?" Based on the italicized description for this 
section, am I right in thinking that we should we keep the discussion to our work with domestic violence 
/sexual assault/trafficking survivors in San Francisco? Or is this question seeking information about the 
firm's full breadth of services to underserved populations?  
 
  The question is seeking to understand the applicant’s specific expertise in providing gender-based 
violence prevention and intervention services through the program and understand the number of 
individuals served by the program. It may be helpful to include background on the organizations breadth 
of services to underserved populations, but it is not required.  
 
8. On the Program Funding Sources tab of the budget workbook, I just want to confirm that the total 
here reflects the amount of funding that supports our entire Gender-Based Violence program in San 
Francisco - right? 
 
Yes, the second tab in the budget Excel file is asking for  every and all of the funding sources that 
support the program for which you are applying.  
 
9. On the Agency Funding Sources tab of the budget workbook, do we need to list every funding source 
for the entire organization? The organization as a whole currently has multiple grants (mostly 
government).  
 
Yes, we want to see all of the funding sources that support your organization as a whole.  
 
10. Is it required that lead organizations provide audited financials or just financials in their application? 
 
Yes, per the RFP Application 04 Required Attachments, applicants or lead organizations must provide 
one copy of the most recent audited Financial Report.  
 
11. Would the Department consider a grant application for the development of social service software 
that directly supports survivors of gender-based violence? 
 
No, the Department will not consider proposals for the development of social service software. The RFP 
is  limited to direct services.  
 
12. We are part of a city-wide collaboration. Although there is no subcontracting or money exchange in 
our current Department grant for this collaboration, do you think including this in our proposal to show 
that we are involved in city-wide collaborations and actively being a part of this collaborative would 
make our proposal stronger?  
 
Including a mention of the various networks you are involved with and the collaborative approach 
would be good to include in your application. We encourage collaborations, and they do not need to be 
formalized or have an exchange of money to be successful.  
 
13. Is there a preference for funding proposals that are enhancing already established projects/programs 
in an organization versus proposals for pilot programs that organizations are interested in starting?  
 
As long as the organization / applicant can demonstrate a minimum of five (5) years’ experience 
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providing gender- based violence prevention and intervention services, we will consider proposals fully 
and equally, whether proposed programs are already established or are new/pilots. 
 
14. We would like to apply to participate in a policy subcommittee work group. Will the grant fund this 
type of work?  
 
The funding for this RFP is geared towards direct social services and not policy or systems change work 
that would come out of  a subcommittee.  
 
15. Our organization does not yet have a physical office so we are “SF-based”, but the intervention we 
want to apply to fund will occur in San Francisco. Does that meet the requirement? We are a registered 
501c3 and our address is in Berkeley. 
 
While we realize that there are successful programs working in neighboring cities and counties, this 
grant opportunity is specific to agencies that have a physical office or community office located in San 
Francisco, and are working in and serving clients within the City and County of San Francisco. 
 
16. If the organization doesn’t have 5 years of experience because we’ve only been in existence for two 
years, but the staff who would run the project have at least five years of experience, does that meet your 
requirements? 
 
Per section II  Applicant Requirements A. Minimum Eligibility Criteria 5, we are looking for applicants 
that can demonstrate a minimum of five (5) years’ experience providing gender-based violence 
prevention and intervention services.  
 
17. As you are surely aware, the vast majority of gender-based violence is perpetrated by men. 
Therefore, education and prevention work must be done with young men (i.e., potential perpetrators), 
not women (since their suffering violence is not their fault, nor is preventing it their responsibility).  We 
assume that violence prevention groups with young men are therefore firmly in the scope of this grant - 
but young men are not mentioned in your Priority Groups.  Could you confirm for us that working with 
young men on communication skills, anger management, healthy relationships, and related topics would 
fall within the scope of the RFP? 
 
While we agree that there is a need to work with young men and all individuals on the issues of 
interpersonal violence, young men are not identified as a priority population in this RFP.  
 
18. On the requirement for a “Financial Report/Annual Audit (one copy only),” can you please advise if 
that means we have to get an audit or if there is any other “financial report” that could be submitted in 
its place.  We have not had a formal audit.  
 
You may submit an unaudited financial statement or balance sheet for the organization. If selected for 
grant funding, per the formal grant agreement, organizations are required to submit  annual financial 
audits. 
 
19. If we are already an approved City Vendor and in compliance with 12B Equal Benefits Declaration, do 
we need to resubmit these forms? 
 
No, if you are already in compliance with 12B Equal Benefits Declaration Non Discrimination in Contacts 
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and Benefits, you do not need to submit anything further. To verify your agency’s compliance with the 
12B requirement, please contact the Contract Monitoring Division of the Office of Contract 
Administration at 415-581-2310 or visit www.sfgov.org/cmd with questions about complying with the 
Equal Benefits Ordinance.  
 
20. Is priority given to organizations who are previous recipients of this grant in good standing? 
 
No, this is an open and competitive process. 
 
21. Does it matter what types of trafficking victims are served through an organizations’ program? Could 
we support services for individuals experiencing labor trafficking?  
 
The Department will consider fully and equally proposals to address all forms of trafficking.  
 
22. What are the ranges of funding requests? Is there an average award amount? 
 
There is no standard amount of funding granted. Budgets should be prudent and reflect actual costs 
associated with the program. As a general guide, applications should be for a minimum of $50,000 
annually. There is no predetermined maximum grant amount. 
 
23. How many proposals should be submitted for separate programs from one organization? 
 
There is no maximum number of proposals from a single organization. However, each program must 
have a separate application and grants will be awarded to maximize services reach to diverse 
communities. Historically no one single agency had received more than four (4) grant awards. 
 
24. If a large agency is applying, should the proposal include a background of the wide range of services 
they provide, or only focus on the services specific to the program that we are requesting funding for? 
 
As part of the application documents, Grant Plan Section 03, Qualifications, we ask you to discuss your 
organization and its stability and administrative management, as well as, service delivery, collaborations, 
and cultural competence. 
 
25. If one program fits into more than one priority service area, are multiple applications required? 
 
Applicants are encouraged to identify the service category their proposal best fits into, and apply to that 
category. 
 
26. When providing budget information, are organizations required to provide comprehensive 
funding/budget information? 
 
Yes, as part of the application process, applicants are asked to complete the budget documents that 
require funding/budget information for the program you are applying for, as well as funding/budget 
information for the organization as a whole. 
 
27. Will you provide information on the expert review panel members? 
 

http://www.sfgov.org/cmd
http://www.sfgov.org/cmd
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Review Panel members are and must remain confidential. Review Panel members are required to 
maintain confidentiality during the review and selection process, and they must be free from any 
conflict of interest or perceived conflict of interest. At the March 2020 Commission meeting, a 
demographic overview of review panel members will be shared, as well as general information on their 
areas of expertise and background. 
 
28. Is it possible to apply for a single component of a service area? Are applicants required to address all 
of the components with the service area? 
 
Yes, it is possible to apply to a single component of the service area. Applicants are not required to 
address all of the components identified in each services category. An agency may focus on as few or as 
many components listed within the category as they choose, and as appropriate to its program design. 
 
29. Our agency is not located in San Francisco, be we provide services to clients in San Francisco – are we 
eligible to apply? 
 
No, while we realize that there are successful programs working in neighboring cities and counties, this 
grant opportunity is specific to agencies that have a physical office or community office located in San 
Francisco, and are working in and serving clients within the City and County of San Francisco. 
 
30. Should we write our application and focus on the first 12 months or the entire  5-year period? 
 
Although this is a 5-year renewable grant, please limit your application, including the program 
description and budget, to what is to be accomplished in the first year, FY 2020-2021. 
 
31. What is the funding source of the funds allocated to this RFP? 
 
The funds allocated to the Violence Against Women Prevention and Intervention Grants Program are 
from the City’s General Fund. Although the RFP has been assigned a maximum amount that may be 
available, the release of this RFP must not be construed as a commitment that funds will become 
available.  
 
32. Do you have an idea of how many clients you want to see served? 
 
No, the number of clients to be served is not specified as a requirement, but we want to see an efficient 
use of grant fund to meet client and community needs. 
 
33. What are your current funding levels by Priority Service areas? 
 
  



6  | San Francisco Department on the Status of Women 
 
 

For FY 2019-2020, our funding amounts by Service Category are as follows: 
 

Service Area FY 2019-2020 Allocation Percent Allocation 
Domestic Violence Shelter Programs $1,473,303  17.16 
Crisis Line Services $642,500  7.48 
Legal Services $1,555,909  18.12 
Transitional Housing $989,728  11.52 
Intervention and Advocacy $2,252,884  26.24 
Prevention and Education $1,670,444  19.45 

          Funding FY 2019-2020 $8,584,768  99.97 
 
 
34. Will the Department on the Status of Women provide a letter of support for current grantees? 
 
No, the Department will not provide letter of support for current grantees for our own RFP. 
 
35. We are funded by another City Department, but not for our gender-based violence or violence 
against women work. Will a letter of support be acceptable from them for similar types of services? 
 
Yes, letters of support can be used to show you have been a responsible grantee, in good standing with 
your funder. They can also be used to show that you have developed strong collaborations with other 
organizations. 
 
36. In section 04 Required Attachments you state to provide three (3) letters of support. If we are going 
to submit three (3) proposals do we need to get nine (9) letters of support? 
 
No, you only need to get three (3) letters of support, and the same three (3) letters can be submitted 
with each application / proposal you submit.  
 
37. In the Department Requirements Mandatory Training section how soon must the training be taken 
and who is required to take it? 
 
We require that at least one (1) direct program staff person attend and complete the Rape Crisis 
Counselor Training or 40-hour Domestic Violence Advocate Training within six (6) months of contract 
award.  
 
38. I run a small program that is part of a larger public institution. Would my program be eligible to 
apply? 
 
No, we realize that there are great programs working inside public institutions, but these grant dollars 
are specific to non-profit, community-based agencies. City departments, public institutions, and 
programs within them are ineligible to apply. 
 
39. Is it possible to apply for policy and legislative work with this funding? 
 
No, this funding is directed to providing direct services for survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, 
human trafficking and sexual exploitation. 
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40. Is partial funding available?  
 
Yes, partial funding is available. 
 
41. If an agency anticipates needing additional funding in future years, is there a place to indicate this on 
the application?  
 
No, organizations should apply for funding that best reflects the program needs. We cannot guarantee 
additional or on-going funding.  
 
42. Can an organization named as secondary subcontractor on one proposal also apply as a prime 
contractor with a proposal for a different service area? 
 
Yes, you can submit a proposal as a prime organization and be including on another organizations’ 
proposal as a subcontractor.  
 
43. Can the audit be emailed?  
 
You must submit one (1) hard-copy of the audit and also email the audit.  
 
44. For the original proposal document, what color of ink should we use for the signature?  
 
Blue ink for the signature.  
 
45. On the budget documents for the total program and total agency funding sources, is there a 
threshold for listing the donors?  
 
Applicants can list all individual donors in one (1) category as “individual donors.” 
 
46. On the budget documents when listing the total program and total agency government funding 
sources should we include our anticipated or pending funding?  
 
Yes, include any anticipated or pending funding sources. We want to see that you have broad financial 
support for your programs and agency overall, and your organizational funding is diversified. You can 
indicate that the funding is anticipated on the budget documents.  
 
47. Is $8.5M the top of the range of funding for this RFP?  
 
Yes, we anticipate that amount of funding to be available.  
 

 


